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aJES tof, O.tB.E "· lOt-BRooKs, Emte fb&s NC> lfn'tu L. IRxJks, 
WI) Mf. PA:rriES WITH A StaSTANTUM. INTEREST IN THIS MTTB NC> ttl) Mf. CR 

WIU BE Slal'MTI/t.L Y AfFECTED BY TtE PRoPosED la;w:;v k:riC* PURSUMT TO n£ 

ABOYE-snt.ED CR& ....at: NC> ttl) MllLD PETITICit ~ TO fUIUDI' fouN­

ISTMTJVE ((IE Rll..£ 25-22,029(4), FCit A .12),57 fEARING IN lHIS MTTER, NC> 

tO.l.D O:FER THE FCU.OWING AS 6AOlJI)S: 

1. IMiaE "· fbt-~RxD, Emre lbEs _, llrntJl L. IRDs -.CJeG WITH 

MA --ft.FRED JMa) tEA£ QJS1UERS 0: fultJM fta.JC UTILITIES UwMY AT AU Tlf£S 

APP - -f MlERIAL t£AETO, 

CAF -- 2. !Mia£"· lbfiRncs .s n£ PRIMMY OMNER o= ftmo's Krrau LTD. 

CMU NC> fmiE Jktr&s, """- l. lADs NC> bAED JMm .uE MllallY PMTJERS AT 
CTR --
EAG ALl TIMES MTEAIM. HERETO. 

LEG I 3. AT AU: TIMES MlERIAL t£AETO -.L ftJm PAID TO ft.(IUDA Puii.IC UTILITIES 

U N $--: ea.NfY f(lt SBI'IICE CN£ DIAEClLY FfOt lwnaE "' IJow lRD$, fmiE tto£s, 

OPC NC> ftmt.it l. JRDs. 
RCH _ _ 4. fu. l'B...EPtmiC aJIUtiCATICitS CDUAHING SERVICE NC> PAMHT FOR SERVICE 

SEC I tOE tW» BETJ&~t Ft:.c1nM IULac UTil iTIES CGPMV Nil)~ L JRas(FCJt) 

"s __ IMta£ "· lbf-Bu*s, fmiE lb&s _, lfmut L. BAooiiS~~INII,...,_rAL 
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5~ fu PAWBTS AFTER AY J.9llj tHE PAID BY lfmu l. Janes, fmiE tbJGEs 

l«llctit fffnotv L amcsc~ IMra.£ "· 10t- &mks> I 

61 AU~ 10 h Y 19'); bRED JMm tMS GIVEN CASH BY lfmu l. IWn<s, EmJE 

Jb&s Nmla~t limo« L~ llocJcs 10 IWCE PAM'NTS Fctit SERYI CE 1 tbEYER 1 T MI\S LAlER 

FQJI) l"MT JMm TeD( Tt£ CASH GIVEN HIM Nl) ~ PAMMTS C.. HIS PERSC1W. IEBTS 

lfi:UI)ING A PERSdW.. ACCOllfT WITH 11£ fUJUM 1\atc UTILITIES CcwMY Nil ISSlED 

BAD aECkS 10 PAY n£ ftma's KaTOB kaufr. 
7. IMIB.E "· lbf IJIIools, Em1e lmGEs Nl) ltrrtu L. ~ PAID nt.: Ft.onDA 

P\a.rc UTILITIES Ccii»MY A SliSSTMTIN.. NOJfT CF flii)S Fctit SERVICE; IN RE1\IIt 

fUIUDA fua.IC UTILITIES Ccii»MY lfWPRO"RIATB.Y FAILED 10 PAOYIIE THAT SERVICE 

IN A fWIER AS SET FCJmt BY All.ES Nl) STAGED INTENTI<M.. Nm fW- ICE lffTUR\FTI<ICS 

<F SAID C::OVICES nRJUGH IT'S CFFICE fWM6ER H tMD COCSPIA£D WITH 8vRD TO PUT 

Tt£ fitmu's KnoEN CftRATUit ABSEJa JMm's PRESEM:E OOT CF BUSINESS ttUU 

aJmfiJI. BIRD' s PERIOM.. ACaUfT 10 GO lltiNtBRPTED so l"MT tE CWJ) PUT OUT 

PIUU:T IN DIRECT COftTITICJt WITH fbno' S K110£N1 

81 As A RESll.T CF ft.OUM flare UTILITIES Ccii»MY'S ACTI<ICS Pbno's 

K1TO£N LTD. stFFEIED NIPAO)(JMTB.Y S39.iD.OO IN LOSSES. 

8. Bv Tt£ A1!tNE PMMiltAPitS M:(D T1WJUQf SEVEN<7) Al!INE lMIELE M. lbf­

IRJclcs, fooiE fb&s Nl> ftmu l. ~ HAVE IStlHSlRATED N.:J ASSERT THAT 1l£Y 

ARE PARTIES WITH SliSSTNfl'UM. INTERESTS Nl) llEIR INTERESTS WILL BE AFFECTED BY 

n£ ~ 1Ea«;y kriCJt. 

STAIDQT (f DISPUlED I~ 

1. Tt£ ft.MIDA Puatc SeRviCE Cottass1at BY N«J nRlU6H •~nc.. 

<F STAFF REcotEJIJATI<JtS IN 1rs ()uo!f1it ~ €RD tOI.D PUT FCJmf AS 

FACT 1l£ FCU.OWI•: 

(A), ColtiSSICJf3tS ~~ ClARK Nl) KIESLING tOI.D AFFI ... THAT C»J PAGE 2 PARA­

GIWtf Ttt&(3) CF llEJR 0uR1 •ll£ COA.AINAHTS STATED ll£H TtEY SOUGHT PAY­

IEHT <F 62,(1), tttlat lfll liJED ftlSllY NOJfTS PAID Cit IT'S ACaUfT FCYit S£.RVICES 

• RECEIVED. I. I •• 

DISPUTE: OM rae 11m lfmOw JRas, Eoore fG6Es ,., Amu L. JRncs lERE n£H 

AS Tt£Y DO fllW SEfl( RET1Jit CF IEPOSJTS IMJ fCJNEY ElCP£J&l) TO flORIDA Pua.1 C 

ltrJLITIES Ca1PN«1 WtO TOCJC THE FUNDS NID AFTER TAKING 119 MINTAINED lltE 

PARTIES HAD fl) ACallfT WITH net. STAFF Nl> Tt£ ABN£ REfERSaD Cc»tUSSICKRS 

SEEK TO N»PLY llC)(2) DlffEJIEHT RUi.ITIES 10 THIS MTTER1 tHN IT SUITS TtEM ,_ 

TIEIR AI tartS TO aMR Tt£ aJIIPNti1 S tiElHICAL ACTI<ICSI TtEY MINTAIN THAT tE 

HAD fl) ACO:UCT NtD 11tE K.aUfT *S JMm' S 10 DO WITH AS t£ PlEASED lliT WEN IT 

CNE 10 FUNDS IT *S CUtS 10 PAY • 



. .. . e e 
lt£ STATE U 11£ III.ES DO fiJT ..WilE FeR A CIRClJMSTNa HREIN A CD'PNff 

CM OSSILATE UCK liE F<Rllt IN u::H INSTAll:£. 

PAGE 'OC)(2) PNWIWII F 1\4£<5) tE TtE PIOPOSED (Ro l UJt.J SSICIERS ASSERT THAT 

•Tt£ <DR.AIIMTS &I PAWEJfT C6 $J072,7J.,,,,, •. 

DISPUTE: PARTIES taER AS*CED feR, IBWCED, a STAlED Tt£ NOJfT tE $1072.71. 

IS Nt.\T nEY SCI8ff, 

P•£ no(2) PMWiRAPU sauQ) OF nE PIQIOSED 01&: U...JSSICIDS ASSERT THAT 

• AT f«) TlfiE .S liE ACaUf'f LISTED IN /!It( on& MAllER. • 

DISPUTE: STAFF'S C11t E»tiBIT SIDf nus 10 'lE F-.SE. IN IT's E»tiBJT Tt£ RECEIPT 

FeR I&OSIT a.EMLY SlOG liE MXXUff IN TIE IW£ C6 ~'S l(aTOU lTD. WITH 

IMm's IW£ NG MDESI LISTED Felt MILING PUIIOiiES. 

PME nt&(3> ,.,...,., CIE(l) CF Tt£ PNJPOSED (Ro; CCMJ SSI<IERS ASSERT THAT 

• • •• A DISPUTE MaE BEI'IEB ~. AlfRED ltAD NG HIS PMTIE.RS. THIS DISPUTE OON­

CBI£0 IN PMT QII'I1Q. CMR THE ACCOUNr • • 

DISPUTE: AT II) TIME DID DnleiB.£ "· (bt-JRXJI(s, EimiE fb&s Nlll/mt MltlR ~. 

~ IMVE A DIIPUTE WITH JMID CM:R THIS ACCDJNr, ~. JMm *S SlULING ASSETS 

USING 1lBI Felt HIS PaSCJW. USEI PlAIN MD SIP!I..£• TtE ACCOllfT *5 NEVER Nf 

I sst£ AS tiE ASiliB FfU tW) THE ACaUfT ESTAII..ISI£D PROPEAL V • ~ • JMm *S 

E.£CTED tEFICIM.LY FIOt THE PM11ERSHIP IN ja_y ~ ..0 HIS 1l&T CNE TO li6HT 

Nm AFTER t£ Ml\5 CXIFMMIED IN 11£ LAST El CF lJE ~ AIOUT on£R JLLEa 

lEAL IN&, 

~ A Y 3 ~ IMm R'NISED THE an& PMTIES tt£N IEJWI) *S ~ FeR REPAMNT 

(J= fOUlS t£ tW) TMEIU ""*T t£ tW> 8T TO HIS FRJEJI) DJfl) Nil lHAT tE 'IJLD 

HAVE US PUT OOT CF IIJSIIESS ~£CAUSE TIE GM stAll Y tOLD BE CUT (J=F , • tit DID 

POT TAlC£ HIM SERIWSL Y • f'Aco: IS NOT CIIE tE US CONTACTED TtE GAS a:JIIIPMY. 

8YRD tOLD ~ WITH A SIMILAR ntEAT LATER ON lilT N;AIN flOE 1lO( HIM SERJ-

OOSL V Nm f«) (XI(l'ACT *S tW> WITH THE GAS CDPN« • 

fUW .. LY fts. KEITT 0: Tt£ GAS ct#PNtf DID C4L US ,_ADVISE THAT Tt£ SERVICE 

t«U.D BE TEAMINAlB> BECAUSE 8vRD tW) ABI£S1£D IT 1lRED CFF; THIS ClCXlDED 

IN .h. V ~ Nm StE DID SEfl) A PERSON CUT TO ltM IT CFF AT JMm' S REQUEST 

STATIM& Tt£ f.CaUff *S IN HIS IWE liE t£ IN Tt£ RIOO TO IMVE IT DJS­

<XIfT I fliED. 

PoJKT a: FACT: IF AS FPU MJW MINTA INS ,_, 11£ 111& U...r ssr<JERS AFF JAM THAT 

n£ ACaUT .s IMm' s TO COfT'IO.: Wf tAS IT fiJT 1UUfD (Jf flllllFT (fF Nil 

A ffW K.OllfT WABJSIP AT DMT R)lfff I 
THIS IS M lfiPCIRTMr PMT OF tHE ~INT THAT STAFF. Tl£ U...JSSIONERS W) 

FPU ..:U..O .AJST SlEEP til& M RUG IN M AI IEJIIT lD aMR VJCLATICif (J= RtUS • 



• 
•ft.lli:Uit ~. B'tRD M.L£6EII.. Y DID NOT PARTICIPATE IN n£ MY TO MY OP£RATI(ItS 

CE fbrt&'s ICITOB AFTER AY 11, .199) t£ IIEMINED A PM110.'", .. 

DISPUTE: D HM fiJT fGt MU.D t£ EYER ~IN PARTICIPATE IN MY ACTI<*S 0: 

fbna's Knao. n w &£CTED AS A PARliER ~~e tMS <!!.Y CQtS!JDED F(ll 

PAST OCCUIWI:ES Ne PROF ITS. 

PME lliE£(3} FMI'I&Wtt lll)(2}z CE 11E PIUIOIED ~~ CcMISSICIERS ASSERT l*T: 

r..,gJNG n£ lllfTHI CF -, a y Me AJaJST ].91}) ••••••••••••• I • • • • • • • IN EACH CF 

TtOiE fOmtS, biER'S ICtlOB MIE LAST "I MITE PAMNTS TO AVOID Dlsald'IMJMCE 

CF SERVICE, • 

DISPUTE: h PAMNTS mE *1£ tiD ~ toE GIVEN NOTICE T~T n£Y tERE D.E IN 

.h.V Me tiiJsT ti. Mil~ Pta.JC UriLITIES REFUS£D IESPITE REQUESTS TO SEJI) 

BIUS TO Tt£ UINESS PHYSICAL lOCATICIU NTER BEING StiJMN l*T Tl£ R£AD Tt£ 

~ PAVMENT *I LATE MM a£ 10 n£JA SEJI)ING IT 10 JMm Nl) NOT Tl£ IIJSINESS, 

lt£JR PRACTICE Uf1BII'ICMJ.Y CUED 1l£ LATEJESS CF PAMJfTS. 

PAGE lliE£(3) PMMIWIH Tll&(3): CF liE PA£IIOSE.D ~~ C.W.ISSICIEAS ASSERT THAT: 

.,_ SeP'miiER 12, 1996 fPU DI.:Dfi'UIJED SERVICE 10 ftmu's Knoo ll£ TO tot­

PAltENT CF S2J),Qll FOR PAST Dl£ MUffS FOt SERVICE Nl) $31.00 F(ll REaii£CT FEE 

1M) FRJ SC1E11UD REaJNNECTION FOR 1HE FG..L.C*Uii fiAtiNG ..... , ~. JMm AECHSTED 

THAT fPU DISCOIIECT SERYICE ...... , .. Tt£ GAS SERVICE *S MJT RECDIECTED TMT MY, • 

D1 SfUTE: JMm tW) fl) RlatT TO A DISCDIECTION, JMm tW» MIE SIMILAR REUST IN 

.lL Y ~ VET SERVICE .S CUfTJfUD, h DID NOT PAY fPU ..: DID, ~ICE IMS 1 ... 

lf&.ED REcarte.:TED lMT DAY AS VERIFIED BY n£ SERYICBWf Nl) Ta's ONN AIMISSION. 

(k. Y AFTER fPU (BrAINED bJIS FA(M US DID l1£Y ltD DlsaJIECT SERVICE. 

2. lt£ -.:NE AS tBJ. AS CUt tFf IC IN.. PROTEST 0: AuosEo I&J«;v k:rJON 

ATTAOED t£R£TO Nl) l~TED tEREIN BY REfEREIC:E ISOISJRATE SLATED DISPUTE 

lsst£S 0: MTERIAL FACTS, 

STATEJDT (f tl.TIMTE Fl£"rn ,. I EffD 

1. IN~ 191}) Emre lb»&Es, ~ l. IRDs PAOVIIED '00 CJE tUIRED IXl.lAR 

BIU.S FM DEPOSIT felt GAS SERVICE, THE alES tER£ TMEN Nl) GIYEN 10 fllll's 

SNf:<Jm ~fiCE BY~ l. IRJoKs IMJ ~AED JMm IN M a:JIIPIIff CF OTtERS 

AI..(N; MITH OOClJIENTS StOfUIG ll£ ESTAII..IIti£HI' CF Pbn£R' S Knao lTD. 

A RECEIPT tMS GIVEN IN liE ME CF fbnB's KITOD lTD. ~ 

WITH NOTATION FOR MILU~ 10 ~RED JMm AT p .0. b J3ll 5w(R), floRID\ m72 

AS A MILING AID£$5, lt£ MILIN& AIDESS ten :1'1«1' .S IWlE II£ TO fl) OTHER MIL 

BQ)( ASSIQfiEHT FOR Tt£ UINESI AT TtMT TIME. 

PN£ FCU(II), 



• 
ft..oRIM Pla IC UriL.: I TIES CGPMY ~ WMTE\U REASOII FAILED TO PA(ft]L Y 

MINTAIN REaii)S lte VICI.ATICit CF RILE 25-7-QB(4)(A). 

fPU IN IT'S I&ENSE CFFERS 6ENERAL t£RESAY llRlU6H TROY MINTAINING IN IT' S 

~ITINGS Nm CJW. STATBBn'S M&(3) DIFFERENT tilE 16HTED REFEREIUS TO tOf 

HN MD '~BE THII IDOIIT MJE, 

SrAFF ,_, 11£ ntE£ ColuSSICitERS IN N'PMEJfr 1VL TO aMR fPU' S VI(LATICit 

I!AUSt£S ASII£ n£ FACTS: liMT 11£ I&OS'T RECEIPT fWCES f«) .etl'lelt CF A.f:RED 

&tRo DIBIA fbno's Knaa. IT gs IN FACT tQ!EVER SIOf nE NNE CF n£ 

ACaUfT AS ftmtER' s Knag lm. 
AmiTJ<MJ..Y 1!£ Qlf\.AUW!TS (!FEREJ) !C19fm) (!!J!NUZED Nl) S!Q!f! STATEIUTS) 

IBOtSTRATJN& Jt!T DIIEJIOSIT W lfRED !W£ AS STATED INn£ CQ!t..AINT. 

b._ IN hv $ fbliER's Krrau LTD. DID Plll¥11£ A SECDD IEPOSIT WW1ED BY 

Ms. ICfiTT c. M -- ~FICE CF FPU. SAID SECXII) IVOSIT CF 61).00 *S MIE 

AUit6 WI 1M A S2lfl) IEJWI) PAMNT A£GUES1ED BY Pis. ICE ITT I As ~ '6£ r«JT 

RECEIVING ACTla BIU.S Nm PAYING NOJNTS Ms. KEITT *S 1BWI)IN6 ~ DID fiJT 

Ql£STICIC NIUfTS ~teE IIEING 1U.D TO PAY, SAID PAM.NT !£SCRIBED AJ!J1:NE *S 

ME _, Felt SCI£ AEA8(It ICJT AECCQEEJ) OOil bJsT 9), 

fPU IN IT'S I&ENSE CFFERS GEJEJW. tERESAY lliOIGH TROY MINTAINING 'mAT Tf£ 

S521.(1) PAM.NT ._ IN JT' S REalmS AS A SU8.E CASH PAMJICT: tiM$ ACTUM..L Y 

A <XJIUMTIC* PAWBIT FfOt 12!1),00 PAID TO THEM IN h Y 95 NtiCH *5 SUPP08ED. Y 

PLACED IN PETTY CASH Nm IIJT AE<XIIE.D F~ SOE SIXTEEN MYS LATER AT tttiOf Tl~ 

IT *5 SlFPOSEI1 Y <X'JitBINED WI 1M NIJTf£R PAMNT AT niAT Tit£ • 

STAFF~ nED ntAEE CcJt.JSSICICERS DO NOT ASK FOR PETTY CAsH RE<XR)S ~ Nff 

F<M CF DOCIJE.'fTATICIC TO VERIFY HIS RIDIQLOUS ASSERTION AM> Tt£Y OI)SE TO 

<XIIUTB. Y 0YERL0r1C 11£ Vl<l.ATICIC CF TAK lNG PAYM:JfTS _, PlACING THEM IN PETTY 

CASH INSTEAD CF IMDJATR.Y CAEDITING T1£ ACaUfT IF TROY'S mJrf ~ nu. 

UIR.:AUWfTS CJ=FEAED v-.10 RECEIPT FOR ftJI)S NtiOf tERE NOT CREDITED TO Tf£1R 

ACCWfT. VEtaqED DOCJ.IIJf!ATIW Cf tO! 1l£ IVOSIT IOtiES '*=RE <IITAifD N1J tOf 

Tf£Y tOE PAJp, 
fPU <II.Y CFfERS STORIES AIOIT INEPT EJIPLOVEES AM> FAIU. TO A1HRE TO Rli..ES. 

'£:r7.00(4)(A) *S Q.ENI..Y YICI.A1£D, 

3. ft..ORIM Plate UTILITIES f.oi»MY VICI.A1£D RIJ..E 25-7.(119(2)(G) IN 'mAT FAJ 
Dl SCX1tNEC1B SERVICE M) LESS lHM f~ Tit£$ WITHIN A ntEE fOf1lf PERIOO WITH 



• 
fl) t!RIT'IB fiJTICE IEJN& GI\4Eif 10 US PRIM TO 11£JA P£RD altiNG WT TO 

Dl SCXNI:CT BY ICE, 

fPU *S ltnan"ICMLY ,.., M.I<DJSL Y CREATIN& Tt£SE SllUATIOCS BY FAILING 

TO AIDESS BILL JN&S PAIOPEJI. Y Nf) PUTTING 11£ PUER fW£S C. 11£ BILLINGS 

~ BEING AEQIESlB> TO II) so. 
STAFF 11m 11£ fDitiSSICIBIS acmE TO I&Ja£ TtE ~lsmrt a: 11£ RECORD 11m 

AIIIESS C1£ Sff&.£ INCUJEifl' GIVING 1l£ fPU TtE ElDISE 'THAT IF n£ MIL *S 

I~ Y DIRECTED BY 1lE POSTAL SERVICE: fPU CM fiJT BE tB..D ACCOJfTAil..E. 

U»ft.AI*NTS MINTAIJI TMT tMD fPU ACTED PRCftJLY '«) SUCH SllUATIC. .au> HAVE 

EXISlB>. 

STAFF 11m 11£ 11IEE CcltuSSJCIBI CII:E NJIJI TAlC£ TROY'S tam WITtOIT MEIGHTED 

DOCtJENTATUit AS TO 'ftE CIACIIISTMCES Wl114 tl) UIEPEIIEN1' PAIXF, 

lbEvER n£ Calii..AJIWfl'S F.Jfl) IT \BY S1RM6E lHAT tttATEVER pcotJ!EH!ATIC. 

IS PAOVIIa> BY Tp COEI Af1B t£ IS cqtRONIED. AT 'THAT Tl~ HAS fl) 

IIXlJ£JflS 10 (ff£R IJT 1JP QUE MX TO HIS (lfiCE IS AilE TO Amii 
mntlli TIMT QJD IJT AI.VI(JR.Y EXIST. 

If. ftauM Pta.tc UraunEs UIPMY VJ(UTED Rau 'Er7.00CD IN THAT FPU 
DID IN FN:r DISCXIIECT SERVICE Cit SEPTalu 12, l!9) Q..AIMING PAST 0£ 

NOM'S, UJR.AJIWfTS DID IN FN:r PAY 11£ AEGUESTED NOJfTS C. THAT SN£ 

MY. 

T t£ REAQ AS A&CitiED FOR 11£ Dlsalfl'IMJMCE a: SERVICE *S SATISfACTORY AD­

~ AS IWJYIIED BY Ru..£. -
tb£vER INSTEAD 0: AII'INISTERING A AE<XIIECTIC. AS PROVIIED BY Rll.£; fPU 
SBfT A SERYICBWf OOT tft) FIRST DISAII ED n£ BUSINESS' AfPLIMC£ Nf) REFUSED 

TO REPAIR SNE DISPilE BEIJIG AECl£STED 10 DO so.(lROY IN IJRIM. aJfEJEfii 
WEN CllffUI1ED BY MTIQfV BmCS VJJH llfEIEIII 10 TIE lmES1ED IEJ'AIR STAlED 
<mL Y IE fW) 11 ~ 10 lllBT fl. JIDICS' lroUfT (f lMAT alf8SATI(It Vlllt 
IE~ 10 1lE IIJM) RJ IEPAIR. 
IOUTUIW.LY, 1l£ IUSINESS tMD N«m£R APPliANCE <It fWI) tttiOt <Xli.D HAVE BEEN 

USED TO MITIGAlE LOSSES fAJ ~ IT1 S SERVIcat:H tiDE CAUSING AS TI£Y ~ IT 

HAS f«)T IFFECTIVE. ft£ SERVIcawt HAD EFFECTIVELY CAPPED <J=F NtD StilT CFF GAS 

stm. Y 10 n£ P JECE CE £CIJIPfENT lt£Y tEAE Cl.AIMING 10 BE IEFECTIVE, Tt£Y tWl 

f«) REASCit TO StilT CFF 1l£ SfJWICAII..E ONE • 

SERYJ CE TO n£ SERVICAa.E PIECE 0: EQUIMNl', TtiJS Al»tl TTl NG YJCl..ATIC. CF THIS 

Rl.u. 
PN.£ (6) SIX 

1 



fPU SOOCJfT TO OWER nE SEQII) PART c:F ll£ aJR.AiftT WITH REGARDS TO VUI.ATION 

c:F THIS Rli..E BY SllltiTTIN& A STATBBfT FIOt nE SERVICEJM, Coft.AI~S RESP(Jft]) 

WllttStOII STA!'£!1:NTS FIUt WlllESSES 8 cmsERVED 11£ SERVICBN Cit ll£ ~1£ IN 

CI£STICJf, 

!>TAFF ~ TtE TtiiEE Ct:iilu SSICJERS SE£K 10 COYER THIS VI <l.AT I <It BV TAkiNG 

n£ SERVICBWt STATEJI:WT AS FACT DISP ITE DIRECT REFUTING OOClJEJfTATICit MD 

TO lWTAU. Y I&IJAE TAO'f' S Alltl SSJCif, 

5. FPU Vlt:l.ATED Rlu 'E>-7 .(119(5) IN l*T n£ aJST(IIIERS c:F n£ ACaUfT NEVER 

ABll£STED A DISCXIIECTICIU _,AT M) TU£ DID fPU PAOVIIE lN MRITING A REASON 

FM SUCH AEFt$L ell Dllalfi'IIIWCE. 

FPU ASSERTS IN n' S I&ENSE l*T tE MERE POT TtE CUSTO£R c:F AE<XIm, fbEvER 

1liOJ6fGIT TtE fllmtS CF Ja..y, ~ _, TtE EMLY PART c:F ~ 9) n£1R 

JBWI)S FCit PAVMEifTS MERE DIRECTED TO US fi)ST TUES AT ~ tOES. Af fl) TU£ 

AFTER a Y 9) DID 11£Y TRY TO CDfTACT JMm ABOUT lHE ACCOUNT. 

BY Tt£1R C*N AIIIJSSICie CDIUUCATIOHS AIWT lHE S1lWE MIJ an& MTTERS MERE 

HAD WITH US, IF IT *S Ill! (U 11CCtJU!! t1tt DIP Tt£V 801l£R TO CALL, TAU( ro 

M T!!fATEN us: ...V DID 1IEY fiJT ~ DO t.MT 1l£Y Pl.EASED 1MJ TALK TO JMm, 

Tt£1R ASSERTIOHS c:F fiJT ICIOfiHG ABOUT A PARTNERSHIP IN flMcH IF BEliEVED CAN 

Aeal.M' FOR FAILlE 10 aiCTACT US ABCllrG PAST PIUl..EMS M <DFUSICJf ABOUT 11£ 

PBJILE <It Tt£ ACaUff lilT AFTER a Y 9) 11£AE au.D BE M) <XWUSI<Jt ABOUT Tt£ 

ACQUf! ~ EXACll.Y tiOiE N:aUfT IT *5. 

STAFf ~ n£ Tt11EE CO!!ISSI(IB$ SEEK TO CXWER THIS VICI.ATI«Jt BY (11:£ NiAIN 

TAKING TROY'S aD WlllQIT DOClJ£NTED VERIF I CAT I <It MD IGfOE DOCti£NTATI<Jt 

TO n£ CXIO'RMY • 

6. fPU Vl<l.ATED Rtl.£ '£>-7.(HK6)W IN THAT n£Y SOOGHT DlsaNECTI<It NCl/att 

DISCXWTIMJANCf CF SERVICE FOR LAlE PAvtefTS lttlat n£Y <FF M1J ON Q.AUED 

WM JMm's ACQUfT, ~ W3E BEING FCitCED TO PAY Btlm's BILl EVEN TtllJGH JMm 

*S fl) La&R 11£AE IMJ tE tMD PAID A IVOSIT • 
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~ SUPfiOSEli..Y CNE tp MIJ ASk FOR DISC.ECTJCie. 
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BEFORB TBE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re : Complaint of Mother 's 
Kit chen Ltd . against Florida 
Public Utilities Company 
regarding refusal or 
d iscontinuance of service. 

OCKET NO . 970365-GU 
RDER NO . PSC-9 7- 1133-FOF-GU 

ISSUED : September 29 , 1997 

The following Commissioner ... participated i n the disposition of 
this matter : 

JULIA L . JOHNSON , Chairman 
J . TERRY DEASON 
SUSAN F. CLARK 

DIANE K. KIESLI NG 
JOE GARCIA 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER PENXING COMPLAINT 

BY THE COMMcrSSION : 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is prelimi nary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose i nterests a r e 
substantially affected files a petiti on for a formal proceeding, 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code . 

Case Background 

On September 17, 1996 , Mr . Anthony Brooks II f~led a complaint 
with this Commission's Division of Consumer Affairs ( "CAF") agains t 
Florida Public Utilities Company (~FPUC" or "Company" ) . Mr . Brooks 
claimed that gas service to his business, Mother's Kitchen 
Restaurant ("Mother's Kitchen"), was improperly d~sconnected by 
FPUC. The following correspondence was provided to CAF : 

• On September 20, 1996, CAF received a letter from Mr . Brooks 
that set forth the allegations of his complaint against FPUC 
("initial written complaint"). 

• By letter dated September 19, 1996, !'PUC responded to the 
complaint '"initial response"). 

• On November 6, 1996, CAP received by fax a letter from 
Mother's Kitchen that set forth allegations o f specific rules 
violations by !'PUC ("second written complaint") . 
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• 
• By letter dated November 26, 1996 , FPUC responded to each 

specific allegation (~second response") . 

• By letter dated November 30 , 1996, Mother's Kitchen off ered 
rebuttal to FPUC 's letter of November 26 ( ~ November 30 
letter"). 

An informal conference concerning the complaint was held 
February 24, 1997, (•first i nformal ~onference") and was attended 
by representative• from Mother's Kitchen ("Complainants") , FPUC , 
and CAP . The Complainants stated then that they sought payment 
from FPUC of $862.00, which included mostly amounts paid on its 
account for service received, and sanctions against the C~mpany. 
The parties did not reach a settlement agreement at the informal 
conference. 

This Commission heard discussion concerning this complaint at 
our May 6, 1997 , agenda conference . We voted to approve our 
staff's recommendation but later voted to reconsider our decision 
when we learned that the Complainants had arrived to present their 
case. At agenda, the Complainants alleged , for the first time in 
this proceeding, that they had paid PPUC $500 on July 11, 1996, as 
a security deposit for a new account for Mother's Kitchen. We 
deferred a decision on the matter to allow our staff additional 
time to investigate this new allegation. In addition , we 
instructed our staff to furt her i nvestigate the circumstances 
surroJnding FPUC's refusal to reconnect service to Mother ·~ Kitchen 
on September 13, 1996 . 

Commission staff from CAP, the Division of Electric and Gas, 
and the Division of Legal Services conducted an informal meeting 
with the Complainants and FPUC in Orlando, Florida, on July 7, 1997 
("second informal conference", for the purpose of obtaining 
additional information and to discuss the posRibility of 
settlement. The parties did not reach a settlement agr eement. The 
Complainants seek payment of $1,072 . 72 and sanction£ against the 
Company. 

Mother ' s Kitchen Ltd . ("MKL") is a partnership between Mr . 
Alfred Byrd, Ms. Daniele H. Dow, Hr . Eddie Hodges , and Mr . Arthur 
Brooks . Mr . Anthony Brooks II represents the partnership interest 
of his wife, Daniele M. Dow . The partnership was created for the 
purpose of operating Mother's Kitchen . 

According to ita records, FPUC received on March 21 , 1996, a 
deposit of $200 .00 to establish an account for Mother ' s Kitchen. 
On March 22, 1996, FPUC commenced service for the account in the 
name of Alfred Byrd, d/ b/a Mother ' s Kitchen . At no time was the 
account listed in any other m~nner . 
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During the term of Mother ' s Ki tche n' s1 account with FPUC, a 

dispute arose between Mr. Alfred Byrd and his partners. This 
dispute concerned, in part, control over the account . The 
Complainants allege that PPUC impro~erly established the account in 
Mr . Byrd's name . (Although Mr . Byrd allegedly did not participate 
in the day-to-day operations of Mother's Kitchen after July 11, 
1996 , he remained a partner . The complaining partners -- all of 
the partners except Mr. Byrd are simply referred to as 
~complainants" in this Order . ) 

During the months of June, July, and August, 1996 , the 
Mother's Kitchen account accrued past due balances for gas service. 
In each of those months , Mother's Kitchen made l ast minute payments 
to avoid discontinuance of service. 

On September 12, 1996, FPUC discontinued service to Mothe r's 
Kitchen due to nonpayment of past due amounts for service received. 
Payments of $230.04 for past due amounts and $31 .00 for a reconnect 
fee were made later that day by the Complainants, and FPUC 
scheduled reconnection for the following morni ng . Early the 
following morning, Mr. Byrd requested that FPUC disconnect service 
to Mother's Kitchen . The gas service was not reconnected that day. 
The Complainants allege that FPUC improperly d isconnected , or 
failed to reconnect, gas service to Mother's Kitchen. 

Estoblisbment of the Original Account 

The Complainants allege that the Mother's Kitchen account was 
inappropriately established in the name of Alfred Byrd . The 
Complainants cite Rule 25-7 . 083(4)(a), which provides that M(e]ach 
utility having on hood deposits fro1 customers . . shall keep 
records to show the name of each customer making t he deposit ... 
Throughout its written complaints , the Complainants asserted that 
Mr . Ant hony Brooko, in the presence of Mr . George Byrd , Mr . Leonard 
Brooks, and Mr . Alfred Byrd , presented to FPUC a security deposit 
of $200 to establish gas service for Mother · a Kitchen. The 
Complainants further asserted that they presented to FPUC, with the 
deposit, a Department of Revenue license namdng Alfred Byrd , Eddie 
Hodges, and Daniele Dow-Brooks as ownr rs of Mother's Kitchen . The 
Complainants claimed that Mr. Alfred Byrd was left by the others to 
obtain a receipt for t he deposit, and, at that time, FPUC 
inappropriately placed his name on t he receipt as the customer-of­
record . The Complainants seek a full refund of this deposit. 

The Complainants later gave statements tha t contradicted t heir 
wr.!.tten complaints. Mr. Anthony Brooks stated at the second 
informal conference that he and Mr. Harry Johnson accompanied Hr . 
Byrd to FPUC 's office and left M.r . Byrd there with $200 to use as 
a security deposit for gas service . 
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FPUC maintains that on March 21, 1996, a cash deposit was made 

in person by Mr. Byrd alone. PPUC asserts that it was provided no 
documentation showing the organization of Mother's Kitchen or the 
involvement in the business of ind~viduals other than Mr. Byrd at 
any time before discontinuance of service on September 13 , 1996. 
FPUC provided us copies of th~ deposit receipt and a work order for 
connection of service at Mother's Kitchen, signed by Mr . Byrd . 

We find t hat FPUC acted in compliance with all applicable 
statutes and Co~~~nisaion rules concerning establishment of service 
and customer deposita . We believe that the deposit receipt on file 
wit h FPUC is the best evidence of who established the account. The 
deposit receipt for this account indicates that the account was 
established in the name of ~fred Byrd d/b/a Mother ' s Kitchen. In 
addition, the work order for connection of service displays the 
signature of Alfred Byrd . 

Further, we find that FPUC should not be required to provide 
a refund of all or any part of the deposit made on the Mother's 
Kitchen account. The deposit was properly applied toward an 
outstanding balance of $310 . 75 on September 19, 1996 , leaving an 
unpaid balance of $110.75 . (After a subsequent payment by Mr. 
Byrd , the current account balance is $88 . 00.) 

Establisbment of a New Account 

As previously stated, the Complainants alleged at the May 6 , 
1997, agenda conference, that they paid FPUC $500 on July 11 , 1996 , 
as a security deposit for a new account for Mother ' s Kitchen . The 
Complainants claimed t hat they made a $524 payment on July 11, 
1996, $500 of whi ch was intended as a deposit for a new account and 
$24 of which was intended to cover a charge for service to a 
restaurant appliance . Mr . Anthony Brooks stated that FPUC provided 
hi m a receipt for this payment but that the r e ceipt did not 
indi cate it was a deposit receipt . FPUC responded by claiming that 
t hey ha ve no record of a $524 payment made on the Mother ' s Kitchen 
account at any time . 

We can only conclude that a $524 payment or $500 security 
deposit was not made by the Complainants to FPUC on July 11, 1996 . 
FPUC ' s records do not indicate any such payment or deposit , and the 
Complainants have not produced a canceled check or a receipt as 
proof of this payment . In addition , no evidence exists to indicate 
t hat Mother's Kitchen owed $24 on July 11, 19Q6 , tor service to a 
restaurant appliance . 

Since the May 6 , 1997, agenda conference , the Complai nants 
have alleged that they paid a $500 securi ty deposit i n August 1996, 
rather than July . At the s econd i nf ormal conference, Hr . Anthony 
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Rrooks insisted that he paid $521.72 on August 28 , 1996 , $500 of 
~hich was intended aa a deposit for a new account and $21 . 72 of 
whi ch was intended to cover a service charge on t he account. Mr . 
Brooks stated that FPUC provided him a r ~ceipt for this payment but 
t hat the receipt did not indicate it was a deposit receipt . 

FPUC's recorda show a $521.72 credit to the account on August 
28, 1996 . FPUC maintains that this credit consists of a $231 . 72 
cash payment (to cover a returned check and returned check charge) 
made on August 28, 1996 and a $290 cash payment (to pay arrears) 
made on August 12, 1996. FPUC acknowledges that t he $290 payment 
should have been credited to t he account on August 12, 1996 , when 
it was made . FPUC claimB that the payment was received late in t he 
day and waa placed in the office manager ' s petty cash box ; the 
Company then corrected this error by crediting the account at the 
time the $231.72 payment was received on August 28, 1996 . 

Agai n , we can only conclude that a $521 .72 payment or $500 
security deposit was not made to FPUC on August 28, 1996 . The 
Complainants have not produced a canceled check or a receipt as 
proof of this payment. Furthermore, at t he first informal 
conference, Mr . Anthony Brooks stated that the Complainants had , at 
one time, made a cash payment of $2 31 . 7 2 to FPUC to cover a 
returned check and returned check charge; this statement clearly 
supports and is consistent with FPUC's position . Finally , no 
evidence exists to i ndicate that Mother's Kitchen owed a $21 .72 
service charge to FPUC on August 28 , 1996. Although FPUC 
admittedly mishandled the $290 payment made August 12, 1996 , it 
clearly corrected its error before it was reflected in any billing 
statement or resulted in any threat of discontinuance of service . 

Further, we note that the Complainants' previous statements 
contradict the allegation that they provided a $500 security 
deposit to !'PUC. In an undated letter to FPUC , Mr . Anthony Brooks , 
on behalf of the partnership , wrote 

( FPUC demanded J that we pay for a bad check Mr . 
Byrd had wrote (sic) them, pay off Mr . Byrd's bill 
and then pay $500.00 addi tional to have the gas 
restored . Only after arguments and threats of 
legal action did they finally except (sic) the fact 
t hat they could not make us do both. Accordingly 
at their request and to prevent further loss of 
revenue did we pay for Mr. Byrd' • bad check and 
bring the bill current . 

In addition , in the initial written complaint, Mr . Anthony Brooks 
wrote 
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Diane [FPUC' s Sanford Office Manager) stated[,] 
when we said we would open another account[ , ) that 
we would have to pay S500.00 plus pay Mr· Byrd's 
bill and pay for a bod che-:;k Mr. Byrd had given 
thAm. . . . [We] told them we would do one or the 
other but not both . Diane and Dino [ FPUC ' s 
Division Manager) then said they would allow 
service to remain in the company's namu as it was 
if we paid for Mr· Byrd's bad check and paid on his 
back bill since it was in Mother's Ki tchen name. 

(Emphasis supplied by original author.) These statements also 
dispel the notions that the Complainants intended any payment to be 
applied as a security deposit for a new account or were led to 
believe that any payment would be so applied . 

Based on the foregoing , we find that the Complainants did not 
make a deposit of $500 at any time to establish a new account and, 
therefore, that FPUC acted i n compliance with all applicable 
statutes and Commission rules concerning establishment of service 
and customer deposits. 

piaconnection and Refusal to Reconnect Service 

In its second written complaint, the Complainants cite five 
subsections of Rule 25-7.089, Florida Administrative Code, that 
were allegedly violated by FPUC. We find that FPUC acted in 
compliance with each of the rules cited by the Complainants , as 
stated below. Accordingly, we find that FPUC should not be 
required to provide a refund of any amounts paid f or service or 
fees on t he Mother's Kitchen account . 

1. The Complai nants allege that FPUC violated RulE: 25-
7.089(2)(g), Flori da Administrative Code, which provides t hat a 
utility may refuse or discontinue service " [ f )or nonpayment of 
bills . . . only after there has been a diligent attempt to have 
the customer comply , including 5 working days' written notice to 
the customer, such notice being separate and apart from any bill 
for service . " 

In its second response, FPUC states that a disconnect notice 
for September 10, 1996, in the amount of $230 . 04 was mailed to the 
Complainants at the restaurant 's physical address on August 30 , 
1996. FPUC provided us a copy of that notice . FPUC states that 
payment was not made on the account , and service was disconnected 
on September 12, 1996. 

We find that PPUC acted in compliance with Rule 25-
7.089(2)(g), Florida Administrative Code . The copy of the notice 
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provided by FPUC clearly shows that it was sent i n the time frame 
: equired by the Rule. The Complainants contend they never received 
this notice . They assert that the U. S. Postal Service was 
rerouting mail from FPUC to Mr. Byrd's personal post office box 
because Mr. Byrd's name appeared on the bill . Even if this 
assertion is true, FPUC cannot be held responsible for the U.S. 
postal service's routing of properly addressed mail. 

2 . The Complainants allege that FPUC violated Rule 25-
7.089(3), Florida Administrative Code, which provides that 
"[s]ervice shall be restored when cause for discontinuance hac been 
satisfactorily adjusted ." They allege that FPUC · s serviceman 
intentionally damaged a control knob , thereby creating a leak on 
the restaurant's stove , in order to avoid reinstating service on 
the account after payment of past due amounts and a reconnect fee 
was made on September 12, 1996 . The Complainants allege that they 
wanted the service reconnected and offered to pay for any r epair 
necessary to reinstate service, but PPUC's serviceman refused. 

The FPUC serviceman sent to reconnect service, Mr. Bill 
McDaniel, provided a signed statement concerning the events that 
occurred on September 12, 1996 . Mr. McDaniel stated that a meter 
test on the gas line revealed a leak somewhere on the Complainants' 
side of the meter. Mr. McDaniel further stated that , after 
inspection , he discovered that the threads of an oven pilot 
adjus~nt screw were worn out, allowing gas to leak . Mr. McDaniel 
stated that Mr. Anthony Brooks refused his offer to attempt to 
repair the leak, so Mr . McDaniel capped and plugged the gas line to 
the range . According to Mr. McDaniel , Mr . Brooks refused to sign 
the Hazardous Condition Report and red tag prepared by Mr. 
McDaniel. FPUC provided a copy of the Hazardous Condition Report 
which indicates that the customer refused to sign it. Mr. McDaniel 
stated that the only other gas appliance did not appear to be 
leaking gas . When he returned to his truck, Mr. McDanie l was 
called by the FPUC office and told to turn off the meter and lock 
it, which he then did. 

At the second informal conference , FPUC explained its decision 
to not reconnect service to Mother's Kitchen on September 13 , 1996. 
Management at FPUC's Sanford office contacted Mr . Darryl Troy , an 
FPUC vice president , to discuss the situation that morning . After 
being advised of the circumstances , Mr . Troy ordered that service 
be disconnected for the following reasons: (1) there was a leak and 
a dangerous condition; (2) the Complainants refused to sign the 
Hazardous Condition Report prepared by FPUC's serviceman and 
refused to authorize repair of the leak ; (3) Mr. Byrd had requested 
early that morning that service on the account be terminated; and 
(4) the account had been in arrears since the due date of the first 
payment. 
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We find that Mr. Troy , based on the information provided to 
him, ~-de a reasonable management decision to refuse to reconnect 
service to Mother 's ~itchen. First, FPUC ' s serviceman located a 
gas leak, which the Compl~inants refused to acknowledge by refusing 
to sign a hazardous conditi on report prepared by the serviceman . 
Rule 2S- 7. 089(2 )(h), Plorida Administr ative Code, provides that a 
util l. ty may refuse or discontinue servicq .. [w) ithout notice in tile 
event of a condition known to the util ity to be hazardous. · 
Second , the customer- of-record , Mr. Byrd , r equested that the 
account be terminated. We believe that FPUC ' o decision to follow 
the i nstructions of the customer-of-record was r easonable. FPUC 
was placed in the middle of a partnership dispute ove r control of 
the account; we believe it would be inappropriate to f i nd that FPUC 
improperly refused to reconnect service under t he circumstances. 

We note two final points on this subject. First , FPUC ' s 
Sanford office manager , Ms. Diane Keitt, t elephoned Hr . Anthony 
Brooks on the morning of September 13 , 1996 , t o i nform him that Mr . 
Byrd had requested d isconnection of service . During t he 
conversation, Ms . ~eitt advised Mr . Brooks that FPUC would leave 
the account on for three days to allow Mr . Brooks time to establish 
a new account. After this conversation , Mr . Troy was notified of 
the gas leak at Mother's Kitchen and the Complainants ' refusal to 
sign a hazardous condition report. We are unaware whether Hs. 
Keitt informed Hr. Troy of her offer to Hr . Brooks before Mr . Troy 
ordered the serviceman not to reconnect service . I n any event, we 
believe that FPUC properly refused to reconnect service immediately 
due to t he presence of a gas leak and the Complainants' fai lure to 
acknowledge the hazardous condition. 

Second, there is no evidence to indicate t hat FPUC's 
serviceman intentionally created a gas leak on an appl iance at 
Mother's Kitchen i n order to avoid reconnecting service. Pursuant 
to Rule 25-7 .037, Florida Administrative Code, gas utilities are 
required to make a general inspection and adjustment of all 
appliances affected by a change in character of service, including 
a change in gas pressure or any other condition or charact eristic 
which would impair the safe and efficient use of the gas in t he 
customer's appliances. Such an inspection is required for safety 
purposes after any outage or disconnection of service. FPUC' s 
serviceman stated that, while performing a safety inspoction before 
r econnecting service at Mother's Kitchen on Septomber 13, 1996, he 
conducted a meter test which revealed the presence of a leak . 
Searching for the lea.k, he removed the £ide plate of the range. 
recognized the odor of gas, soaped the valves and fittings, and 
l ocated the leaking part. We believe that the "'e>rviceman was 
simply performing his ) Ob and was not creating laa~s. 
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3. The Customer alleges that FPUC violated Rule 25-7 . 089(5) , 
Florida Administrative Code, which provides that " ( i )n case of 
refusal to establish service, or whenever service is d iscontinued , 
the utility shall notify the applicant or customer in writing of 
t he reason for such refusal or discontinuance." 

In its second response, FPUC states that it n'3ver refused 
service to tbe Complainants. FPUC asserts that Mr. B} rd requested 
service on the account be terminated on September 13 , 1996. FPUC 
fur t her asoerts that the Complainants did not provide the deposit 
required t o establish service under a new account. 

We are uncertain as to what exactly the Complainants ' 
allegation relates . If, as FPUC appears to assume, the allegation 
r elates to refusal of service, we find that FPUC acted in 
compliance with the Rule. After Mr. Byrd requested termination of 
service on the account on September 13, 1996, the Complainants had 
the opportunity to establish service under a new account, provided 
they pay the necessary deposit , but they chose not t o do so. If 
the allegation relates to discontinuance of service for nonpayment , 
we find that PPUC acted in compliance with the Rule for reasons 
stated previously . If the allegation relates to discottinuance of 
service at the request of Mr. Byrd, we find that t he Rule i · 
i napplicable. When a customer voluntarily requests discontinuanc~ 
of service from a utility, the utility is not required to notif: 
that customer of the discontinuance . Rule 25-7.089(5), Florida 
Administrative Code, is not intended to govern voluntar y 
disconnections. 

4. The Complainants allege that FPUC violated Rule 25-
7 . 089{6){a), Florida Administrative Code . Rule 25-7 . 089{6) lists 
grounds which do not constitute sufficient cause for refusal or 
d i scontinuance of service to an applicant or customer. 
Subparagraph {a) of the Rule provides that one of those grounds is 
~(d)elinquency in payment for service by a previous occupart of the 
premises unless the current applicant or customer occupied the 
premises at the time the delinquency occurred and the previous 
customer continues to occupy the premises and such previous 
customer will receive benefit from such service . " 

In its second response, FPUC state s that the Complainants were 
not re:::used service because of the delinquency of a previous 
tenant . PPUC notes that the account was not delinquent on 
September 13, 1996, when Mr. Byrd requested termination . FPUC also 
notes that Mr. Byrd was the "current tenant • thr ough Soptomber 13 , 
1996 . 

We find that Rule 25-7 . 089{6){a) , Florida Administrative Code, 
is inapplicable to this situation. Hr . Byrd was the customer-of-
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record and ~current occupant~ from the inception of the Mother's 
Kit chen account until he requested disconnection on September 13, 
1 : ~6. The Complainants never opened an account separate from the 
original Mother's Kitchen account . 

At the first info rmal conference, Mr. Anthony Brooks stated 
that he paid PPUC $160 toward che account balance on July 11, 1996. 
At that time, according t o Mr . Brooks, a new account should have 
been initiated in t he Complainants' names . Clearly, however, FPUC 
i s not restricted t o accept payment on an account only from the 
account's customer-of-r ecord. If an individua l other than¥~. Byrd 
made payments on the Mother's Ritchen account, a new account would 
not automatically be opened for t hat individual, nor would that 
~ndividual automatically become the customer-of-record. 

5. The Complainants allege that FPUC violated Rule 
25-7.089 (6) (e), Florida Administrative Code. This Rule states that 
one of the grounds which does not con•titute sufficient cause for 
refusal or discontinuance of service is •[f]ailure to pay the bill 
of another customer as guarantor thereof.~ In its second response, 
FPUC notes that Hr. Byrd was the customer-of-record and the account 
was not delinquent on September 13, 1996 . 

We find that Rule 25-7 . 089(6)(e), Florida Administrative Code, 
is inapplicable to this situation . Mr . Byrd was the customer-of­
record on this account from inception until termination . There is 
no allega~ion and no evidence that the Complainants were guarantors 
of the Mother's Ritchen account. 

6 . We note that the Complainants also allege that FPUC 
violated Rule 25-7.048 , Florida Administrative Code, concerning 
continuity of service. This Rule concerns unplanned service 
interruptions , not the type of planned discontinuance of service at 
issue in this docket . This Rule is inapplicable to this situation. 

Based on the foregoing , it is 

OROERBu by the Florida Public Service Commission that Florida 
Public Utilitie• Company properly e•tabliahed survice in the name 
of Alfred Byrd, d/b/a Mother's Kitchen , and managed the deposit for 
the Hother•a Ritchen account in compliance with Commission rules 
concerning customer deposits. It is further 

ORDERED that Florida Public Utilities company administered the 
Mother ' s Kitchen account in compliance with Commission rules 
concerning refu•al or discontinuance of servi ce and all other 
applicable Commission rules . It is further 
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ORDFRED that Florida Public Utilities Company shall not be 
required to provide a refund of all or any part of the deposit made 
on the Mother ' s Kitchen account or any GmOUnte paid for service or 
fees on the Mother ' s Kitchen account . 

ORDERED that the provisions of this C: der, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective unless an 
appropr iate petition , in tbe form provided by Rule 25-22 . 036, 
Florida Administrative Code, is received by the Director, Division 
of Records and Reporting , 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850 , by the oloae of buaineaa on the date set forth 
in the "Notice of Further Proceedings or Judicial Review~ attached 
heretc . It is further 

ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final , this 
Docket shall be closed . 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this ~ 
day of September,liil. 

( S E A L ) 

WCK 

/s/ Blanca s . BAy6 
BLANCA S. BAY6, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 

This is a facsimile copy . A signed 
copy of the order may be obtained by 
cal ling 1-850-413-6770 . 

PIS SENT 

Chai rman Johnson and Commissioner Garcia dissent . 
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MOntER'S UTCHElf LTD. 
POST OFFICE BOX 1363 
SANFORD, FLORIDA 32772 

against; 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES 
COMPAIIY 
POST OFFICE BOX 3395 

FLORIDA PUBLIC ~VICE COMMISSION 
CAPITAL CIRCLE 0 ICE CENTER -
2540 SHUMIJU) OAK BOULEVARD 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0850 

DOCKET NO. 970365-CU 

WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33402-3395 

IROTICE OF PROTEST 

COMES NOW, Daniele M. Dow-Brooks, Eddie Hodges and Arthur 
Brooks, would file this their official protest to proposed 
agency action in thia watter; and as grounds for such, would 
offer tbe following: 

1. Proposed agency action is being considered based upon a 

wholly false aod bias report froa Staff. 

(a). Staff Reccowendations: 

Page 2 paragraph three(3): Staff alleges that the first ti~e 

~ention of a f500.00 security deposit for a new account was at 

an agenda hearing on 5/6/97. 

This is total~~lse as Mr. Plescow was aavised of this fact 

on 2/11/97 during a telephonic coarunication with Anthony 

Brooks over speaker phone which was witnessed by Daniele, Lind 

Jackson and Leonard Brooks. 

Page 2 paragraph six(6): Staff asserts that on March 22, 1996 

service for the account was coa~enced in the naae of Alfred 

Byrd d/b/a Mother's Kitchen. Staff attaches an exhibit to it's 

Recca«~endation showing receipt of deposit for f200.00 as 

proof of this. 
Said exhibit indeed does not reflect staff assertion but rathe 

substanuates coaplainant's clai~ in that the exhibit clearly 

shows the depoait was credited to Hother•s Kitchen with Alfred 

Byrd naae and adreas being shown for ~ailing purposes. 

Staff once again puts forth a false aasertion. 

Page 3 paragraph one(l): Staff asserts "thi s dispute concerned 

in part control over the account". 

Another false prot~ayal by s taff; since any disagre~ent by 
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the parties of ~partnership centered ar~ Mr. Byrd's 

theft of ca.pany funds of which FPU was not a party no con­

trol of FPU accounts could be in question. 

Rather Staff werbera bad been told tiwe after tt.e that the 

Partnership's problea's vith FPU' s handling of the account 

after Byrd left and Keitt and Dino's harrasswent of the Part­

nership and buainea• due to friendahip with Byrd. 

If as Staff asserted before the C~ission that this case for 

FPU was an anonrally is true. Then their own words support 

our contention. 

Page 3 paragraph two(2): Staff asser'.:ion that the D"Onths of 

June, July and August 1996 the account accrued past due bal­

ances and last winute paywents to avoid discontinuance of serv 

vice. 
Another distorted allegation put forth by staff; for if any 

part of the record is to be believed; it clearly shows that 

past due .. ounts vere present frow inception April, May aa 

well as June, July and August. 

An oaission deliberately wade by staff tG tilt the facts of 

this watter and detract away froa the real reason the account 

was alvaya late; and that vas due to FPU's refusal to direct 

billinas to the business; after they were requested to do so . 

Therefore FPU assured continuing late paf!ents because parties 

payin.g the bill never recieved thea. 

Page 3 paragraph three(3): Staff asserts that Hr. Byrd re­

quested that FPU disconnect service; on 9/12/96. 

Staff deliberately orits the fact that Byrd had D"ade the saae 

request in July 96 and FPU did not disconnect service at that 

tilre. 
An ~portant fact when you consider that at that tiD"e if FPU 

bad waintained the account vas Byurd's they would have been 

stuck with a hefty account balance along with returned check 

by Byrd. Instead FPU through the guise of having corrected 

the account; ~orted those balances froa the Partnership by 

every other week threatening to discontinue service unless 

payaent was wade by the partners not Alfred Byrd . Finally 

when the partners bTought the account current FPU using the sa 

saae ruse of Byrd requesting discontinuance to iaproperly shut 

off servuice to the partnership. 



P~g~ 4 ~ragrajlttwo(2); Staff asserts thaflto 

partnership 1rade a $500.00 deposit to FPU. 
~ruber of the 

This ia a totly falae aaeertion; in that on 7/11/96 Keitt fro~ 

FPU'a Saaford office advis ed Anthony Brooks in the presence of 

Harry 0. Johnson; that the partnership would have to bring 

current the account of Byrd, pay five hundred dollars and pay 

service charges on the account for service to be continued. 

At that ti•e Anthony only had $160.00 on his person and after 

arguing the paywent of Byrd's charges and threatening lawsuit 

Dino and ~eitt took the $160.00 and laft service on with the 

rerainding paywent of the deposit t c occur later that day when 

the •oney vaa obtained. 

(Note: in hearina in Orlando Keitt alludes to Dino giving the 

partnarabip credit •• it is this arrange.ent to which she ref­

era.) 
At approzirately 4:00 pr Brooks and Johnson returned and gave 

Keitt the $521.00 abe requested. 

Note: at no tire during the course of the partnership's trans­

actions vitb FPU were we given billing atata.enta or any docu­

~entation displaying vby these funds were due; FPU was ~ailing 

billings directly to BYRD and we were being harrassed at the 

business by telephone calla fro1r Keitt and drop ins fr~ peo­

ple sent out to the business by Keitt. Keitt would state what 

was due and then state if abe didn't have it in her office by 

a certain ti1re aervice would be iwwediately interrupted. 

Attached is sworn statewenta fro• Eddie Hodges stating he 

provided $180.00 in cash to ~rake up the deposit total and 

sworn atata.ent frow Arthur Brooks stating be had to borrow 

$260.00 f r o• Linda Jackson and provided it to ~rake up the 

deposit total; and sworn atate~rent fro~ Linda Jackson stating 

she loaned Arthur Brooks the above referenced ~oney to wake 

up the total and sworn atate~ent froa Harry 0. Johnson stat­

ing he provided the $81.00 additional dollars to ~ake up t he 

total and acc01rpanied Anthony with th woney and saw it was 

given to Keitt. 
ALL OF THIS INFORMATION WAS AVAILABLE TO STAFF IF THEY CHOSE 

TO PURSUE I T : BUT INSTEAD THEY WERE SO I NTENT ON DISTORTINC 

THE TRtrm AND MAICING US OUT ".LL BE LIARS IN SUPPORT OF FPU 

THEY DID NOT SEEK IT. 
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• • • Page 4 paragraph four(4): Staff assertions with regards to 

Brooks statewent at the second inforwal conference is totally 

falae. 
Brooks vas referring to the second security deposit as Staff 

well knows. 

Staff also knows froa telephonic conversations that aside fror 

George Byrd, Leonard Brooks and Alfred Byrd at the first de­

posit Brooka and Johnson was in Jobneon'a vehicle prepared 

to haul equipwent. So Johnson was present at the first deposit 

also but no within earshot of what vas being said. 

ANOTHER STAFF DISTORTION IN SUPPORT OF FPU. One would alrost 

think staff vas uployed by FPU. 

Page 4 paragraph f1ve(5): Staff assertions with regards to FPU 

consistently •alntains that on 3/21/96 vas rade in person by 

Byrd alone. 
This to is FALSE; aa staff well knows OT should have known by 

FPU' s own d~entation as vas pointed out to stsff by Brooks 

depicting bow in three seperate doc~ents; FPU give different 

versions of bow the deposit was rade. 

Page 5 paragraph one(1): Staff alleges their exhibit of a de­

posit receipt dsonstartes the account being established as 

Alfred Byrd d/b/a/ rother's kitchen. 

Thi~ exhibit dewonatrates the opposite of what staff alleges 
it shows the account in the NAME of Mother's Kitchen and 

reference to Byrd is in the address section for uailing pur-

poses only. 
ANOTHER STAPF DISTORTION OF PACT IN SUPPORT OF FPU. 

Page 5 paragraph five(5): Staff asserts reference t o the secur 

deposit being rade in August as opposed to previous stateaent 

of July. 

STAn• DOES TWO TH.INCS HERE: 

1. They outright lie; they were aware that at tire discussions 

were directed t~rds how FPU was uis3 handling the account 

and recording transactions; Brooks pointed out the auount 

which they had recorded as being received on 8/28 was the aaou 

of the deposit we had paid. 
2. They distort the truth in their assertions as to what was 

on any receipt. Brooks did not have the receipt and vas argu­

ing it vas not necessary since by record FPU was acknovledgtng 



5 
... . e e 

receipt of that .. ount. 

Staff vas further retriss in that they COII'pletely ocritted frOG' 

this paragraph that PPU vas not able at the hearing to explain 

what the recvrded pa~ent vas for. 

Or the fact that FPU with it'a recorda present va~ not able to 

explain why a $290.00 receipt vas not recorded. 

Page 5 paragraph stx(6): Staff assertions of what FPU records 

show and what FPU raintaina. 

Staff on face value takes Troy's word(absent doc~entation) 

on what the $521.72 vas supposed to represent. 

Fpu could not and as of this date can not pro"ide one piece 

of docuwentation to aupport their assertions regarding the 

$521.00 paywent. We can show by their own records that they 

adJrit to receivina t:bia uount in one paywrent. 

They can not provide one billing atatuent showing where $290. 

and $231.72 vas billed in August. 

On the other hand we posess a receipt shoving a $290.00 pay­

~ent which vas never recorded anywhere. The $290.00 payaent 

was ~ade on 8/12 at the request of Keitt to clai~ the return­

ed check of Byrd returned to th~ on 7/24 and other charges 

she alleged to be due at the ti~e. 

IF 11iE MADE UP STORY OF noy IS TO BE BELIEVED ONE WOULD HAVE 

TO BELIEVE DIAT T.\IIS COMPAliY HAD IN IT'S POSESS ION A RETl1llNED 

CHECK ON 7/24 AJUI DID NOT INSIST IT BE TAKEN CARE OF WHEN A 

PAYMENT WAS MADE ON 8/12: INSTEAD THEY WOULD WAIT UNTIL 8/28 

TO HAVE IT TAlCEH CAREOF: 

It ~akea no aenae. The $290.00 paywrent was for that check as 

we at4ted.and it was done on 8/12 as the receipt indicates. 

When you consider that the $290 . 00 payvent of 8/12 ~as for 

the retruned check in their poaeasion on 7/24. WHERE DID THE 

OTHER f290.00 core frocr. And where is the $231.72 why they 

allege to have been paid on 8/28 c~e froa. 

WE MADE NO PAYMENT ON 8128; if such was rade why can't Troy 

produce the docurentation. 

ADDITIONALLY: STAFF PRODUCES A FORCED f150.00 WHY DID THEY NOT 

PRODUCE THE COPY OF THE $211.72 WHICH WAS RETRUNED WHICH WOULD 

INDICATE THE DATE IT WAS RETRIEVED BY US. 
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Instead of said assertions by staff it ia .. ortl likely that 

Troy ia telliy the truth about Keitt putting ,,-orv.:y in pet -., 

cash and not posting it until 8/28. BUT TROY PUilPOSELY IS NOT 

TELLIIIC mAT THE ACTUAL AMOUNT WAS 11lE $521.00 WHICH WAS 

PLACED THERE BY IEITT WHILE nfEY DREAHED UP SOME WAY TO JUST 

FY HER IMPROPER HARDLIBG OF THE ACCOUNT WHILE LENDING SUPPORT 

!Q_ HEll FRIDD BYRD. 

Page 6 paragrapba1,2,3,4 and 5: Staff turns a blind eye to the 

obvious in an atte.-pt to convince the cocr .. ission that we are 

liars and FPU ia telling the truth. In the paragraph above the 

true nature of Troy's unsupported state.-ent has been sho~ to 

be false and highly unlikely. 

Moreover we assert and it has been verified by FPU's own state 

.. ents that what we paid vas what was de.-anded by word of .. outh 

fror Keitt; the a..ounta abe de.-anded we aasu..ed to be accurate 

since the actual billings vere forwarded directly to Byrd and 

we never saw the.-. FPU ada-its they forwarded all bills to 

Byrd. 
Throughout Staff's entire ra..blings on page 6 no where do they 

explain or even atte.-pt to explain why Troy would take pa~ent 

when holding a returned check since 7/24 and not de.-and that 

check be taken care of when pa~ent was ~ade on 8/12. 

So~ething which .. akes Troy's state.-ent without .. erit and shows 

it to be exactly what it is an absurd ..using to cover their 

iuproper actions. 

Page 8 paragraph one(l): Staff would have sane person& believe 

that after the ~any personal contacts by the partnership and 

FPU representatives; that FPU did not realize it was not deal­

ing with Byrd. They never recieved one of the pa~ents in 

question froa Byrd, they did not converse with Byrd about 

late or overdue payuents. the fact is in the real Vorld if a 

co .. pany is not being paid or if they recleve a bad check fro .. 

the person of record; they do not talk to his e .. ployeea, they 

seek to talk directly to hi ... Thia further de .. onst~atcs that 
FPU knew it waa no longer dealing with BYrd but was dealing 

with the partership and their acts support our contention of 
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that deposit vas l'ade and that FPif vaa obl1&ated to enaure 

that proper billina vas done. 
Thus they did violate 25-7.089. 

fage 9 paragraph two(2): Staff asserts a lie in the entirety 

of this paragraph. 

Keitt never adviaed Brooka of any thing . Brooks talked directl 

to troy. 
In hearing in Orlando when Brooks in front of Troy aade re­

ference to this fact; Troy's response vas "I don't doubt any 

of what Mr. Broob ia saying" AND MR. l'llOOICS DID SCREAM TO 

TROY THAT HIS PEOPLE FIX HIS STOVE AND THAT HE WOULD PAY FOR 

IT EVEN THOUGH HE AND OTHERS WATCHED HIS REPAIRMAN BREAK IT 

HE WOULD PAY FOR IT AND ARGUE n1E FACT APTEilW.ARDS. 

ADDITIONALLY BJlOOKS HAD OTHER SDVICABLE EQUIPMENT IN 1llE 

BUILDING WIHT A GAS SUPPLY LINE WHICH WAS NOT FAULTY AND FOR 

WHICH TROY HAD NO llEASON TO SHUT OFF THE SUPPLY. 

So Staff in distorting the truth once again, does not report 

an accurate account to Lhe coaaisaionera. 
Troy even adritted in bearing in Orlando that he was wrong to 

have the gas abut off. 
But aore reaias than anybody ia Staff: 

Firat they accept the !a~ce of an assertion by FPU that they 

would have left the gas on \Dltil aonday.. . t o skirt around 

one rule. Then in the aare breath they have service discon­

nected and adwit they should not have. 

additionally FPU first gets aoney under threat of shutting off 

service f or late paywent. Then they aaintain service was not 

denied for late payuent because the account was curr~nt due to 

payrent aade tbe day before. 

Any person could see FPU was engaging in play on words to 

avoid being hit with a violation of the rules. So~ething Staff 

should have been able to recognize and report accordingly. 

STAFF's EXHIBITS: 
1. Deposit Receipt already addressed above does not reflect 

what staff aaintaina. 
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2. Work Order: addressed with staff previous ly and is a clear 

case of FPU docuwent creation in an atterpt to cover it's self 

as there never bas been a Vulcan Fryer present at that lo­

cation. 
So FPU is doing one of two t hings (a) . falsely billing a custo 

for work on a non-existent piece of equiprent. or (b) lying 
abc'.!t the order' a existence prior to c01rplaint. 

3. Account Surrary: 

This doc~ent is faulty and in the Staff's zeal and bias 

di s position towards coaplainants con~ain knowingly false 

i nfonration. 
Their atterpt at agenda conference to expldin away soae of the 

errors not withstanding. 

coa.ents on line 4 are false Arthur wr6te no checks and the 

check presented was forged. Attached ar e copied checks where 

byrd forged nawes on the~. Anthony did not write this check. 

coa.enta. on iine are not a · trUe reflection of record since 

FPU recorda showed absolutely no entry for that date at all. 

Staff sought to cover this fact by not traking the 

notation on it's exhibit. 

cotr~enta on line 19 are likewise in -nature as those on 18 

above. 
coaaents on line 24 contradicts s taff and FPU assertion that 

there was no delinauency at titre of shut off . as does line 

23 . 

THEREFORE: If sta£f reasons for reccoa.endations are faulty 

and staff's exhibits are faulty and C~aissioner Deason b­

ruptly discussions on the ~atter and Coawissioners Clark and 

Kiesling adaittly ~re confused as they at one point stated 

and was evidenced by their questions; then CO.plainants 

could not have recieved a fair and iapartial hearing on 

their cause of action. As outlined above i t is clear the FPU 

violated rules in record keeping(they adrit to this). vio­

lated rules in recieving and recording paywents(they adait 

to this) and engaged in coverup activity to conceal their 

wrongful and adverse actions; which caused the de•ise of the 

coaplainants business; the harshest of sanctions is indeed 
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warranted and for the eo.wtssion to do less would be like 
a judge telling a theft you only stole a little so there 
will be no punist.ent at this tiJre. 
If the citzentry can not depend upon the ~ission for protec 
ion fr~ utilities then what purpose does the Coa~isiion 

~~ 
0..L/L.A 
Arthur Brooks 
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.Ill STATEMEBT OF HA.RllY JAON 

I Harry O. Johnson, do hereby swear and attest to the follow­
ing facts: 
On March 21 1996 I along with Leonard brooka, George Byrd, 
Anthony brooks, Alfred Byrd did go to the Sanford Office 
of the Gas ca.pany for the purpose of paying a $200. 00 
securit y deposit. 
Additionally I went with Anthony Brooks a£ter Keitt of the Cas 
coapany telephoned the reataurant at 8:00 u on 7/11/96 and 
spoke with ... lookina for Anthony Brook.a and aaying that gas 
would be turned off if he did not coa-e to the gas co1rpany and 
aake a paYII'ent. 
I t elephoned Brooks on his ~robile phone and relayed Keitt's 
de.. and . 
I was also preaent and beard leitt'a derond that Brooks pay 
Byrd 's bill and sive her $521.00 and a01re cents for a securit y 
deposit. I heard Brooka queation this and even heard hi~r ask 
her how abe cue up with thia figure when only a $200.00 
deposit waa orisinally aaked for. 
I heard Keitt aay the uount was for 500.00 deposit and s01re 
costs the account had. 
I was also preaent when Arthur sot the 260.00 fro1r Linda 
and I travelled to Orlando and got the 180.00 fro~ Eddie 
and gave thew the r.waindina 81.00 out of ry own pocket. 
I was present with Anthony when we vent back to Keitt later 
t hat day and she vas siven the 521.00. 
Brooks had als o given her 160.00 earlier . 
I answered ~rost of Keitt calla to the business which CO'e 
alaost: bi-Wt!ekly and never asked for Byrd. 
I was alao preaent on 9/13/97 when the set:VicCJran for the gas 
co1rpany arrived, I vaa outaide the back door cleaning kitchen 
ite1rs when he pulled up. He got out of his truck and went 
ilflfediately inside the buildina. He did not stop at the ~reter. 
Once inside he stated to AAron Williua the chef that we neede 
to call Diane right away because Byrd was in their office 
and asking Diane to cut off the gas and not reconnect it. 
Aaron told bilr he would have to tlk to tony who vas out front 
the service~ran without goi~ back outside kneeled down in 
front of the stove aDd too the front cover off . I vent out­
side to get Tony. 
When Tony cue inside he asked the service~ren if the gas had 
been turn d on , he said not yet and that Tony needed to call 
Diane. Tony told ht. he did not want to talk to her and that 
we were late openina bec•uae the gas was not turned on and 
that we would lose a let of ~roney if we did not open right 
away. The aervice~ren said over and over again while he vas 
turning fixtures on the stove that we needed to call Diane. 
At no ti~e during this ti•e did he go anywhere, he just kept 
kneeling there and talking about Diane. 



.. • • When he saw Tony was not going to call Diane he said you 
have a leak on the stove; Tony asked hiD" howw could he know 
t~t when be had not turned the gas on or checked anything. 
He stated he knew there was a leak and said he would show hiD". 

He then got up and for t he first tiD"e since he had arrived 
went to the weter. There he put sOD"e kind of tubi ng with 
dials on it and then c .. e back inside and turned the oven on 
when he did this a flU'e shot up frOD" a coupling on the stove . 

¥~n;•l~a@:3 E~~i@bi~etA:a~eak was rifht where he had been 
turning on the coupling for the past ha f hour. 
Tony also disputed the leak because with the flue shooting up 
llke that; if that leak ha.cl been there all the while we would 
have seen it before and called for repair. Tony also questlone 
as it being very funny that the so call ed leak was now coD"ing 
fr~ sOD"etbing be bad supposedly fixed previously. 
Tony then dsanded the Servicuan give hiJr the 1\&D'e and nwrber 
of the supervisor in their corporate offices. He d i d not and 
started saying that even if the leak was fixedd he would aot 
turn the gas on until ve talked to Diane. 
Tony then got tbe phone and called inforD"ation for the corp. 
office. While Tony was on the phone the serviceD"an asked D"e 
aod Aaron if the partners weTe having a probleD" because Al 
was at there office this D"orning dea-anding no service be provi 
ded. We told bU- he would have to ask Toy about that. 
Tony vas now screuing at sOD"eone he called Troy on the phone 
duanding that his stove be fixed and duanding that TToy 
instruct his serviee.an who was still present to repair what 
be bad broken. 
Myself and Aaron clearly heard Tony tell Troy that he would 
pay for the repairs and argue about it later. 

'nle aervicea-an stated be could not repair it now and said 
Tony would have to go to the office and ask for a work Order 
before repair could be ••de. Tony told biD" why ; just turn the 
coupling back where it was before you tamed the d4D"n thing to 
cause the leak. The serviceD"and then wrote out a paper and 
asked Tony to sign it saying the stove was a hazard; Tony told 
h1.a- he vas not signing anything and to do what he wanted to do 
to the stove .... and asked hu hedbad found anything wrong with th 
fryer s1,.ce ne -naa~ nOf touctie ~rf. 
fie stated the fryer was alright. Tony asked hiD" to at least 
leave it n s~e we would not lose all the D"oney in ested 
today. He said I got no reason to turn it off and went outside 
he then cue back in and said he was turning everything off 
and left. 
It is 1.-portant to note prior to talking about a leak or even 
before putting a tube with dials on the D"eter he went to his 
truck and talked with sOD"eone. Before turning off the gas the 
l us t tiD"e he did the s4D"e thing. 
I know he did not go to the D"eter before entering the building 
because the •eter vas only five feet away fro~ where I was 
working and I h&d been vorking there for a nwrber of hours 
before I saw hiD" drl ve up. 
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I watched hiw very closely fro. the ti•e he had arrived until 
the tue be left; due to the pr obl«s we bad been having with 
this corpany. 

I vas also present on July 5, 1996 when Alfred Byrd told Tony 
and the others that he vas going to have his friends at the 
g11s c01rpany put th• out of busi ness. 
1 vas also present on July 7, 1996 when Alfred Byrd told 
Tony and the others that be had told Diane and Dino to turn 
off the gas. 

I vent with Tony on 9/13/96 as he got •oney fr01r the bank and 
vent to our custowera and refunded •onies and paid ~ronies 

to individuals vbo ve could not supply tbe pro.-iaed food in 
l i ne with a two for one cuata.er prorotion pra.iaed and ad­
vertised for the date in question. 
I watched hi• i aea of $3732.00. 

Sworn to and Subcribed to this ,23 

~ t:~ 
J:MM.-tt. L. F!CR6o5MI 

day of Septeaber 1997. 
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STATEMENT OP LEONAltD HOOKS 

I, Leonard Broolta do hereby swear and affim that on or about 
March 20, 1996 Al Byrd, Eddie Hodges, Arthur Brooks and 

* thony Brooks in wy presence vas discussing the opening 

of Mother's litcben Restaurant. 
During the conversation Byrd sat down at rry rrother' a hOG'e and 

ad~sed the others that be had no ~oney to help with the 

security deposita for the differeat utilies which ~ould have 

to be turned on. 
Eddie and Arthur produced a $100.00 dollar bill each and gave 
t hea' to Anthony to pay deposit on the sa• on the rrorning of 
March 21, 1996. 

As rryself, George Byrd, and Harry Johnson was on hand to pick 

up tables at the restaurant, ve went by the Gas COG'pany and 

there I watched Anthony give Byrd the two one hundred dollar 

billa along with license papers in front of a rather large 

black ferrale behind the counter. 

{!--,.,/) de~~-
onard broolr.a 

Sworn to and Subscribed to before rre the undersigned authority 

day of Se terrber 1997. 



. .. • • STATDIEH'l'_OP LINDA .JACUON 

I, Linda Jackaon, do hereby swear and attest to the fact that 

on 7/11/96, at ry bare Anthony and Arthur Brooks were dis­

cussing a derand frc. K.eJ.tt at the Gas C01rpany for pa)'lrent 

of $521.00 on account o f needing s01re type of security 

deposit. I also witnessed Anthony talking on the phone to 

Keitt about this. 

As they did not have the .. oney on nand to •eet the duand 

being 1rade upon th• I loaned A~thur $260.00 which he gave 

to Anthony to take to the gas c01rpany. 

I know of tvo other tiwes Keitt called this residence looking 

for Anthony or Arthur. 

SwoTn to and subscribed to before ae tbe undersigned authority 

this J3 date of Septe.-ber 1997. 

r<'i!~ 
J,.k<M: ~ L. f'ICR6£&w 
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